
AGENDA 
Community Planning Advisory Committee 

Wednesday, March 3, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
via Zoom 

 

 

 

 

Mandate: The mandate of the committee is to provide feedback to applicants and advice to 
Council on land use applications, policies, regulations and initiatives referred either directly by 
Council or through the Development Approval Procedures Bylaw. 

 
 

1. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
The Town of Ladysmith acknowledges with gratitude that this meeting takes place 
on the traditional, unceded territory of the Stz’uminus First Nation. 

 
2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
3. ADOPTION OF FEBRUARY 3. 2021 MINUTES* 

 
4. COUNCIL REFERRALS 

a. Official Community Plan & Zoning Bylaw Amendment application* 
3360-20-08 – 10864 Westdowne Road 

 
b. Official Community Plan & Zoning Bylaw Amendment application* 

3360-20-09 – 336 Belaire Street 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Council Committee Structure 
       Councillor McKay 
 

6. MONTHLY BRIEFING 
 None. 
   
7. NEXT MEETING - TBD  
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
*Attachments 





MINUTES 
Community Planning Advisory Committee 

Wednesday, February 3, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
via Zoom 

 

 

 

 

 

PRESENT: Chair – Jason Harrison; Members – Abbas Farahbakhsh, Tamara Hutchinson, 
Jennifer Sibbald, Brian Childs; Council Liaison – Tricia McKay; Acting Senior 
Planner & Recorder - Julie Thompson 

 
ABSENT: Members – Tony Beckett, Steve Frankel 
  
GUESTS: Applicant – Matt Schnurch (Turner Land Surveying) 
 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m.  
 
1. INTRODUCTION OF NEW MEMBER 
The Town’s Acting Senior Planner, Julie Thompson, introduced the new Community 
Planning Advisory Committee member, Abbas Farahbakhsh. Abbas provided a brief 
overview of his professional background. 
  
2. ELECTION OF A CHAIR 
It was moved, seconded and carried that Jason Harrison be the Chair of the Community 
Planning Advisory Committee. Jason opened the meeting by recognizing the traditional 
territory of the Stz’uminus First Nation. 
 
3. AGENDA APPROVAL 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the Agenda of February 3, 2021 be approved. 

 
4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the Minutes of January 6, 2020 be approved. 
 
5. COUNCIL REFERRALS 

a. Zoning Bylaw Amendment application 
3360-20-05 – 630 Farrell Road 
The Town’s Acting Senior Planner, Julie Thompson, provided a brief overview of 
the application. 
 
The applicant, Matt Schnurch (Turner Land Surveying) provided a short 
presentation of the application, including the property owner’s rationale for 
rezoning, to allow for stratification of the proposed duplex units. 
 
CPAC members discussed the application and deliberated aspects of the 
application including the structure of the strata, stormwater management, bird 
nesting sites, and building schemes/design parameters. 
 



 

 2 

It was moved, seconded and carried that the Community Planning Advisory Committee 
(CPAC) supports in principal Zoning Bylaw amendment application 3360-20-05, and 
recommends that Council consider the following items: 

a.    Stormwater management; 
b. A survey for bird nesting sites; 
c. The structure of the proposed strata with particular consideration to 

reviewing the services provided by the Town, and the services provided by the 
strata; and 

d. Clarification with respect to building design guidelines for this subdivision. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 None. 
 
8. MONTHLY BRIEFING   
 None. 
 
9. NEXT MEETING – TBD 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the meeting be adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Chair (J. Harrison) 

 
 
RECEIVED: 
 
 
 
____________________________________      
Corporate Officer (D. Smith) 
 



 

 

CPAC REFERRAL REPORT 
 

Report Prepared By:  Julie Thompson, Planner  
Meeting Date: March 3, 2020  
File No:  ZBL 3360-20-08 
Re: Zoning Bylaw Amendment Application – 10864 Westdowne 

Road 
 
 
sEXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
An application has been submitted to rezone the 6110m² (0.611ha) property located at 
10864 Westdowne Road to allow “Storage Yard” as a principal permitted use. The applicant 
is proposing outdoor commercial storage of RV’s, boats, and vehicles. The Community 
Planning Advisory Committee is being asked to provide comment on the application and if 
necessary, make recommendations to Council. 
 

Figure 1: Subject Property 



INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND: 
The 0.611ha subject property is located at 10864 Westdowne Road. It currently contains 
a house and a small cabin. A tributary of Stocking (Kerr) Creek and riparian area located on 
the property (see figure 3). Land uses in the vicinity of the subject property are summarized 
in table 1, below. 
 
Table 1: Surrounding Land Uses 

North The property immediately adjacent to the north in is located in the 
CVRD and contains a commercial storage facility, and industrial uses.  

East TransCanada Highway and forested CVRD lands. 
South Peerless Road Recycling Centre and industrial (I-2) zoned lands.  
West Peerless Road Recycling Centre and industrial (I-2) zoned lands. 

  

 
The property owner is proposing to do outdoor commercial storage of RVs and boats on the 
subject property, possibly as an expansion of the outdoor storage use occurring on the 
property to the north. Additionally, the owner operates a mechanic business on the same 
neighbouring property to the north, and stores vehicles waiting for repair on the subject 

Figure 2: Surrounding Zoning 



property. The proposed outdoor commercial storage would also include storage of these 
vehicles awaiting repair.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
Official Community Plan (OCP): 
The subject property is located within the Industrial designation in the Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 1488. The Industrial designation is intended to accommodate industrial 
development and employment centres. It provides for the range of industrial and light 
industrial uses, and limited commercial uses to support industrial parks. The maximum 
density is 0.3 floor space ratio (FSR) for industrial and 0.7 FSR for light industrial 
developments. The subject property also falls within the South Ladysmith Area Plan (SLAP; 
Schedule D of the OCP). The subject property is within the Industrial designation in the 
SLAP, intended to provide larger land parcels with reasonable costs to attract value added 
forest sector uses, as well as other industrial uses. 
 
The following OCP policies are relevant to the proposal: 

• Fish bearing and non-fish bearing riparian areas shall be protected from 
unnecessary intrusion and development. 

• Riparian corridors will be protected for their contribution as linkages between 
ecosystems. 

• Industrial development is directed to the newly created industrial park areas in 
Ladysmith. Serviced industrial locations are currently designated in the Plan for the 
north waterfront in the northeast sector of the Town. A new industrial area in the 
south sector of Town is planned for a rural level of servicing in the interim, and is to 
be fully serviced in the long term. 

• Direct urban development growth through sequential extensions to the existing 
infrastructure servicing distribution systems. Interim rural servicing standards are 
allowed in the recently incorporated South Ladysmith area for industrial and 
agricultural uses, with connection to full municipal services when made available. 
 

The following SLAP policies are relevant to the proposal: 
• Permit industrial development in the area designated Industrial. 
• Industrial uses are intended to permit the range of uses anticipated for an industrial 

park, including land-extensive heavy industry associated with the forest sector, 
primary processing, manufacturing, warehousing, wholesaling and storage, product 
assembly and service, transportation and distribution uses.  

• New development in the industrial designation on parcels of a minimum 2.0 ha and 
uses with minimal water supply and sewage flow demands can be serviced with 
municipal or private well water and a private sanitary system. Parcels less than 2.0 
ha are required to be on municipal services. 

 
With respect to the OCP policies, staff have the following comments: 

• The proposed density consistent with the light industrial density regulations. 
• The proposed use is consistent with the industrial designation. 



• The parcel is less than 2.0ha in size and is not currently serviced by municipal 
servicing, including water and sanitary sewer. The Town’s Engineering Department 
has noted that a water main is available in proximity to the site. However, sanitary 
sewer is not yet available to the area and is not expected to be available in the near 
future. The SLAP was written in 2002, and the policies anticipated extensive 
infrastructure and servicing upgrades in the plan area which have not been 
implemented. 

 
Development Permit Areas (DPA): 
The subject property is located 
within Development Permit Area 5 – 
Industrial and Development Permit 
Area 6 – Riparian, pursuant to the 
OCP. A Development Permit (DP) 
will be required prior to 
establishment of the proposed use 
which may require earthworks, 
screening and/or landscaping, and 
demolishing of the existing cabin. A 
DP application would require 
submission of a Riparian Areas 
Protection Regulation (RAPR) 
assessment, to also be submitted 
and approved by the Province in 
accordance with the Provincial 
RAPR Regulation. A future RAPR 
assessment and DP would evaluate 
the proposed development in more 
detail and provide specific protection measures for the watercourse located on the 
property. 
 
The applicant has submitted an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report from a 
registered biologist (see attached). According to the report, fill has been imported into the 
DPA without a permit and approximately 80-100m² of the fill is within the Streamside 
Protection and Enhancement Area (SPEA). The biologist recommends that fill should be 
removed from the SPEA as soon as possible and the site should be stabilized from surface 
erosion to prevent sedimentation of Stocking (Kerr) Creek. This remediation of the stream 
is required regardless of whether the zoning application is approved.  
 
The EIA report contains several other recommendations, see attached report for details.  
 
Zoning: 
The subject property is located within the Light Industrial (I-1) zone in Zoning Bylaw No. 
1860. The I-1 zone does not permit the proposed use, which would most closely fall under 

Figure 3: Approximate Location of Kerr Creek Tributary 



Storage Yard, a permitted use in the Industrial (I-2) zone. The definition of Storage Yard in 
accordance with the Zoning Bylaw is:  
 
“the use of land outside of an enclosed building where construction materials and equipment, new 
building materials, monuments and stone products, public utility equipment, or other materials, 
goods, products, vehicles, equipment or machinery are stored, baled, piled, handled, sold or 
distributed, whether as a principal or accessory use.” 
 
The Zoning Bylaw requires all uses permitted under the bylaw to be connected to the Town 
community water and community sewer system.  A variance or site specific bylaw 
amendment may be required as community sewer is not available to the area at this time. 
 
Proposed Bylaw: 
The proposed bylaw would allow Storage Yard use on a site specific basis in the I-1 zone on 
the subject property. Additionally, the definition of Storage Yard is proposed to change to 
include RV and boat storage. The proposed bylaw may also include regulations to screen 
the Storage Yard use, such as through a fence and/or landscaping. 
 
Covenants: 
There is one covenant on the subject property title requiring a 15m setback from Stocking 
(Kerr) Creek. 
 
SUMMARY: 
This rezoning application is being referred to CPAC for comment in accordance with the 
Town’s Development Procedures Bylaw and CPAC’s Terms of Reference. The minutes from 
this CPAC meeting will be on the agenda for the next available Council meeting. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Environmental Impact Assessment 



 

203-321 Wallace St Nanaimo, BC V9R 5B6 

OFFICE 250-591-2258; Cell SARAH BONAR 250-714-8446  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
February 8, 2021 
 
Shane Seifried 
10864 Westdown Road 
Ladysmith BC 
 
Via Email: sseifried@hotmail.com 
Cc: kriskennedy39@gmail.com 
  
         
RE: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 10864 WESTDOWN ROAD LADYSMITH BC 
               
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
 

Aquaparian Environmental Consulting Ltd (Aquaparian) was retained to complete an 

Environmental Impact Assessment for a proposed zoning amendment for 10864 Westdown 

Road in Ladysmith BC.   

 

As understood, the property is zoned I-1 Light Industrial and the owner wishes to add vehicle 

storage activities to the existing zoning.  The intent is to lease additional storage space to the 

neighbouring business, Ladysmith Mini Storage Centre for vehicle / boat / trailer storage.  

 

A review of the Town of Ladysmith maps identifies the property is subject to Development 

Permit Area 5 (DPA 5) – Industrial. A tributary of Stocking Creek, locally known as Kerr Creek, 

forms the western boundary and therefore DPA 6 should apply, though the town map does not 

indicate the riparian DPA beside the mapped stream. This stream is subject to the provincial 

Riparian Areas Protection Act and Regulation as it flows into Stocking Creek – a fish bearing 

watercourse.   

 

A site location map is included with this report as Figure 1.  A series of photographs taken by 

Aquaparian during the site visit is included as Appendix A. 

 

2.0 PROVINCIAL REGULATIONS 

 

Riparian Areas Protection Regulation. The RAPR calls on local governments to protect 

riparian areas during residential, commercial, and industrial development by ensuring that a 

Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) conducts a science-based assessment of proposed 

activities to determine the appropriate riparian setback and prescribes measures to protect the 

setback from the proposed development.  This regulation applies to fish bearing watercourses 

mailto:sseifried@hotmail.com


10864 Westdown Road Ladysmith BC 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

February 2021  2 
 

203-321 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, BC V9R 5B6, Ph: 250-591-2258 

OFFICE 250-591-2258; Cell CHRIS ZAMORA 250-714-8864  

 

and tributary streams connected to fish bearing watercourses.  For streams, the Riparian 

Assessment Area extends 30m; if land alteration is proposed in this area, a RAPR assessment 

is to be conducted before development is allowed to proceed. The assessment will determine 

the Streamside Protection and Enhancement Area (SPEA) and prescribe measures to protect 

the SPEA from Development.    

 

Provincial Water Sustainability Act (2016).  

Works in and about a stream under Section 11 of the Water Sustainability Act requires that a 

person may only make “changes in and about a stream” under an Approval or Notification. 

“Changes in and about a stream” means: any modification to the nature of the stream including 
the land, vegetation, natural environment or flow of water within the stream, or any activity or 
construction within the stream channel that has or may have an impact on a stream.  A 

Notification is used for specified low risk changes in and about a stream that have minimal 

impact on the environment or third parties. Notifications are used for specified low risk changes 

in and about a stream that have minimal impact on the environment or third parties. The work 

must meet the requirements of the Water Sustainability Regulation, and comply with any 

conditions set out by a habitat officer in response to a notification. Notifications are to be 

submitted at least 45 days prior to the scheduled work and within the same calendar year as the 

proposed work.  Exceptions exist for certain emergency situations but must be reported to 

province.   

 

3.0 RESULTS 

 

Aquaparian (Sarah Bonar R.P.Bio) completed a site assessment on February 3, 2021 to 

document the existing site conditions and environmental attributes of the property.     

 

The property is roughly triangular in shape fronting Westdown Road on the eastern side of the 

parcel. The property is bounded on the north by the Ladysmith Mini Storage Centre.  The 

western boundary is formed by a wetland reach of a tributary of Stocking Creek, a fish bearing 

watercourse.  The Ladysmith Mini Storage Centre is comprised of a number of storage buildings 

and a levelled gravel yard for storing recreational trailers, boats, utility trailers and vehicles.  

Kerr Creek is culverted from one side of this property to the other discharging into the subject 

parcel and adjacent property across the creek.   

 

The property is developed with a house located within a fenced portion of the yard located in the 

northeast corner near the road.  A small, unused cabin is located in the back of the property 

near the northern boundary.  A number of vehicles in various states of disrepair and one fifth-

wheel are parked near the driveway.  The driveway is dirt and has recently had fill imported and 

graded to level an area proposed for additional vehicle storage.  As understood, a pile of old fill 

left by the previous landowner was levelled out and additional fill has also been deposited and 

graded into the riparian area of the creek.     



10864 Westdown Road Ladysmith BC 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

February 2021  3 
 

203-321 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, BC V9R 5B6, Ph: 250-591-2258 

OFFICE 250-591-2258; Cell CHRIS ZAMORA 250-714-8864  

 

    

The remaining riparian vegetation is comprised of a ~5m wide strip of young red alder trees and 

reed canary grass and patches of salmonberry.  A row of ten mature Lombardi poplar trees is 

located along the edge of the floodplain roughly in the middle of the parcel.  A couple of larger 

trees are located toward the north end of the property.  The primary environmental feature is 

Kerr Creek which is a linear wetland reach with wide floodplain areas to either side of the main 

flow channel.  The floodplain edges are dominated by reed canary grass.  

 

In 2012 Aquaparian completed a Riparian Areas Regulation Assessment of the parcel located 

across the creek.  Results of the assessment determined the Streamside Protection and 

Enhancement Area for this reach of the stream is 15m starting from the edge of the active 

floodplain.   Based on the channel morphology, and the parcel being on the north side of the 

creek, the SPEA will be the same 15m on the subject parcel.  Aquaparian placed flagging along 

the stream channel, at the edge of the active floodplain, at the approximate 15m SPEA and the 

approximate 30m DPA to determine the encroachment of the fill and plan remediation 

requirements.  The flagging along the 15m SPEA also provides a visual reference to indicate 

the maximum allowable developable area.  Approximately 80 to 100m2 of the 15m SPEA has 

been impacted by fill placement. 

 

A review of the most recent Google Earth image (May 20, 2020) shows riparian vegetation was 

green up to the edge of the driveway.  The edge of the driveway was approximately located at 

the 15m SPEA boundary. A review of the property on Google Earth street view dated June 2016 

taken from Westdown Road shows most of the riparian area was vegetated by grass, a row of 

young red alder trees, a few shrubs and the row of Lombardi poplars.  A small pile of soil was 

located in the middle of the lawn area and a triangular driveway entrance appears to be recently 

gravelled.  The area of new fill placement appears to have been over the area of grass 

extending almost to the row of red alder trees that are located along the edge of the floodplain.   

 

As per the RAPR, any alteration of land within 30m of the stream should have been subject to a 

Development Permit.  If this process had been followed, a RAPR assessment would have been 

completed and a 15m SPEA would have been identified as the limit of disturbance allowed.  

Measures would have been prescribed to carry out the project while protecting the SPEA from 

development – in this case fill placement to create a larger level storage area.  The province 

does not allow RAPR assessments to be conducted retroactively when there is already and 

impact within the SPEA – instead an impact and remediation assessment report is to be 

submitted to the municipality to address the bylaw violation. Remediation of the site will likely be 

a condition for the rezoning and future development plan of the property.   

 

 

 

   



10864 Westdown Road Ladysmith BC 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

February 2021  4 
 

203-321 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, BC V9R 5B6, Ph: 250-591-2258 

OFFICE 250-591-2258; Cell CHRIS ZAMORA 250-714-8864  

 

3.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Based on site observations and measurements, fill was imported within the 30m DPA without a 

permit and approximately 80 to 100m2 of the fill is within the SPEA.  The maximum area that the 

parcel can be developed for storage is up to the 15m SPEA boundary. Therefore, the fill should 

be removed from the SPEA as soon as possible and the site should be stabilized from surface 

erosion to prevent sedimentation of Kerr Creek.   

 

The following measures are recommended prior to rezoning: 

 

• The 15m SPEA boundary should be more accurately located by a surveyor; 

• Remove the fill from the 15m SPEA down to the original ground – it is recommended to 

remove at least one more meter back from the SPEA in order to have a stable slope, 

manage sediment migration and allow space for a future retaining wall if required; 

• If fill is stored on site for future land development, it is to be stored outside the 30m DPA 

and covered with a tarp to prevent sediment migration; 

• Install a row of silt fence along the section of SPEA beside the fill placement to prevent 

sediment migration into the creek. The bottom skirt of the silt fence is to be buried as per 

required installation methods;  

• Cover the newly exposed soils within the SPEA with grass seed and straw to prevent 

surface erosion.   

• Fill is to be clean and free of contaminants; 

• All heavy equipment is to be clean and free of leaks and have spill management materials 

on board; 

• Any spills of deleterious substances to watercourses are to be reported to EMBC at 1-800-

663-3456. 

 

The following will be required for future storage area development: 

 

The property is subject to the Industrial Development Permit Area and the Riparian 

Development Permit Area.  As such, a Development Permit application is to be submitted to the 

Town prior to any future development of the property.   

 

Between the 15m SPEA and 30m DPA, future development of the storage area is expected to 

require additional fill, grading of fill, installation of a lock block or armour rock retaining wall, 

gravel placement and fencing.  The small cabin may also be demolished.  Some vegetation may 

be removed between the 15m SPEA and the 30m DPA.  As understood, development of the 

additional storage area is to be undertaken by Ladysmith Mini Storage Centre once a lease 

agreement is negotiated.   

 

 





10864 Westdown Road Ladysmith BC 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

February 2021  6 
 

203-321 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, BC V9R 5B6, Ph: 250-591-2258 

OFFICE 250-591-2258; Cell CHRIS ZAMORA 250-714-8864  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 1  
 

SITE LOCATION MAP  



10864 WESTDOWN ROAD LADYSMITH 

SITE LOCATION MAP



10864 Westdown Road Ladysmith BC 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

February 2021 7 

203-321 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, BC V9R 5B6, Ph: 250-591-2258 

OFFICE 250-591-2258; Cell CHRIS ZAMORA 250-714-8864 

APPENDIX A 

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS 



10864 WESTDOWN ROAD

Photo Sheet 1

Photo 1.  Google Earth Street View of the property taken in 2016 showing limited riparian 

vegetation dominated by grass and a row of immature red alder and several Lombardi 

poplar trees.  

Photo 2.  Showing the same view where the fill has been placed in the 30m DPA of Kerr Creek up to 

the row of red alder trees.



Photo Sheet 2

Photo 3. Showing a portion of the fill within the 15m SPEA looking toward Westdown Road. 

Photo 4. Showing another portion of the fill within the 15m SPEA up to the edge of 

the active floodplain. 



Photo Sheet 3

Photo  5. Showing the fill within the 30m DPA . 

Photo  6. Showing the largest portion of the fill within the 30m DPA. 



Photo Sheet 4

Photo  7 & 8. Showing the northern property boundary and the 15m SPEA and 

30m DPA flagging on the fence line shared with the Ladysmith Mini Storage property. 



Photo Sheet 5

Photo  9 & 10. Showing the poorly defined stream channel within a floodplain reach 

characteristic of a linear wetland dominated by reed canary grass, red osier 

dogwood and salmonberry.  Red alder trees are growing along the edge of the 

active floodplain. 



CPAC REFERRAL REPORT 

Report Prepared By:  Christina Hovey, Senior Planner 
Meeting Date: March 3, 2021 
File No:  3360-20-09 
Re: Application to Rezone 336 Belaire (the Jailhouse) from 3 to 4 

storeys 

Click or tap here to enter text. 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The current application is to amend the zoning for 336 Belaire to allow for a fourth-storey (one 
floor commercial, three floors of residential). The current zoning on the property allows for three-
storeys, with commercial on the main-floor and residential units in the two storeys above. The 
current zoning was adopted by Council in January, 2020.   
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION 

Resolution 
Number 

Resolution 
Date 

Resolution 

CS 2020-005 Jan. 7, 2020 That Council adopt Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 
2014, No. 1860, Amendment Bylaw, No. 2020. 

CS 2019-397 Dec 2, 2019 That Council: 
1. Proceed with third reading and final adoption 

of Bylaw 2018, cited as Official Community Plan 
Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw 
2018. 

2. Proceed with third reading of Bylaw 2020, cited 
as Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 
1860, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 2020 

3. Direct staff to refer Town of Ladysmith Zoning 
Bylaw 2014, No. 1860, Amendment Bylaw, No. 
2020 to the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure, pursuant to the Transportation 
Act. 

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND: 
In January 2020, 336 Belaire Street (the subject property) was rezoned from C-1 (Local 
Commercial) to the CD-6 Zone (Comprehensive Development 6 – Belaire Mixed Use) zone. The 
property is 1,530 m2 in size and was the site of a former police station. The police station building 
has been demolished and the property is now vacant. This application is to amend the zoning for 
336 Belaire to allow for a fourth-storey (one floor commercial, three floors of residential) and up 



2

to four additional residential units (to a total of 12 units). The current zoning on the property 
allows for three-storeys, commercial on the main-floor and up to eight residential units in the 
two storeys above.  
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is located at the 
corner of Belaire Street and Rigby Place, 
near the intersection between Belaire 
Street and Dogwood Drive. Adjacent to the 
property on the opposite side of Rigby Place 
is Wickham Park, a small, landscaped park. 
On the opposite side of Belaire Street, to 
the rear of the subject property, and 
surrounding Wickham Park are single-
family residential properties. There is a 
multi-family (townhouse) development 
adjacent to the property at Dogwood Drive. 
On the opposite side of Dogwood Drive 
there are a mix of single-family and multi-
family residential properties.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
Official Community Plan:  
The subject property is designated as local 
commercial in the Official Community Plan 
(OCP) and is within both Development 
Permit Area 3 ‘Commercial’ (DPA 3) and Development Permit Area 4 ‘Multi-Unit Residential’ (DPA 
4). The Local Commercial Designation is intended to accommodate small scale commercial uses 
located within neighbourhoods. It provides for a limited range of retail, office, and service uses, 
which do not compete with the commercial uses in the downtown core. The OCP states that 
residential uses may be included within the Local Commercial Designation provided that they are 
consistent with the scale, form, and character of the surrounding neighbourhood.  

As of the 2020 rezoning, 336 Belaire is within a Comprehensive Development Zone. The OCP 
states that Comprehensive Development Zones may be located within any designation, provided 
that the mix of uses conform or are compatible with the permitted uses of the designation.  
 
The opinion of Staff is that the proposed zoning amendment is consistent with the OCP and an 
OCP amendment is not required.  
 
A development permit will be required prior to construction. The applicant has provided 
renderings of the building design which are provided in Attachment A.  
 



3 
 

Zoning Bylaw: 
The property is currently zoned Comprehensive Development 6—Belaire Mixed-Use (CD-6). A 
density bonus provision of the CD-6 zone requires the owner to construct parking improvements 
on the other side of Rigby Place along edge of Wickham park. The proposed rezoning would add 
an additional density bonus provision to allow for up to four additional residential units providing 
that the owner meets additional requirements. The proposed zoning amendment is described 
below in Table 1: Summary of Zoning Amendment.  
 
Table 1: Summary of Zoning Amendment 

Provision Current Zoning Proposed Zoning Amendment 
Floor Space Ratio 0.9 maximum 1.2 maximum (to be confirmed)   
Residential Density Eight (8) units maximum with 

a requirement to provide 
street parking and drainage 
improvements on Rigby Place 
adjacent to Wickham Park 

12 units maximum with the following 
requirements: 

-  to provide street parking and drainage 
improvements on Rigby Place adjacent to 
Wickham Park (the same requirement as 
for 8 units) 

- Underground parking is required for the 
residential units 

- Green building provisions (compliance 
with BC step code, step 1 or higher) 

Height of Principal 
Building(s) 

11.0m maximum 13.5m maximum 

Step Back of Upper 
Storey(s) 

None specified Fourth storey to be a maximum of 85% of the 
size of the first storey (to be confirmed)  

  
Amenity Contribution 
The applicant is proposing to provide 11 parking spaces adjacent to Wickham Park and to 
update the storm water infrastructure along Rigby Place. The applicant is also proposing to 
construct a pavilion/shelter in Wickham Park. This proposal is consistent with the vision for the 
park as a place for people to congregate and relax and as a potential location for a community 
garden.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A – Applicant’s Rationale 
 Attachment B – Proposed Community Amenity Contributions 



A
Y

P
Q

 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
E

w
w
w
.a
yp
qa
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e.
co
m

th
e 

Ja
ilh

ou
se

 
33

6 
Be

la
ire

 S
tre

et
, L

ad
ys

m
ith

 B
C

 
O

w
ne

r: 
 th

e 
Ja

ilh
ou

se
 B

re
w

in
g 

C
o.

 L
td

. 

A
 R

ez
on

in
g 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 h

ei
gh

t 
fr

om
 th

re
e 

to
 fo

ur
 s

to
re

ys
 

N
ov

em
be

r 0
6,

 2
02

0 

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



    

A
Y

P
Q

 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
E

w
w
w
.a
yp
qa
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e.
co
m

B
A

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

H
ei

gh
t C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s 

To
w

n 
Vi

si
on

 
Va

lu
e 

&
 T

he
m

es
 

Pe
op

le
 

P
ub

lic
 S

pa
ce

s 
– 

C
re

at
in

g 
gr

ea
t s

pa
ce

s 
to

 b
e;

 
S

id
ew

al
ks

 in
to

 p
la

ce
s 

of
 

an
im

at
io

n,
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
lo

ur
; P

ar
ks

 fo
r a

ll 
ag

es
; 

G
re

at
 S

tre
et

s 
th

at
 o

ffe
r 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

; 
H

ou
si

ng
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 th
at

 
su

pp
or

t r
es

id
en

ts
 a

t a
ll 

st
ag

es
 o

f t
he

ir 
liv

es
 to

 
pr

es
er

ve
 fr

ie
nd

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 o

ve
r t

he
 y

ea
rs

. 

R
Z 

PR
O

PO
SA

L 
20

20
 

In
cr

ea
se

 h
ei

gh
t f

ro
m

 th
re

e 
to

 fo
ur

 s
to

re
ys

 
 

 
 

 

       La
dy

sm
ith

’s
 V

is
io

ni
ng

 P
ub

lic
 P

re
fe

re
nc

e 
H

an
db

oo
k 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 fo
ur

 s
to

re
y 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

-re
si

de
nt

ia
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
s 

th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
m

od
el

 fo
r m

ix
ed

-u
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

  
“A

 fo
ur

 s
to

re
y 

(1
2.

7m
) c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
ty

pe
 fo

rm
in

g 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 s

tre
et

 w
al

l i
s 

th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
m

od
el

 
w

he
n 

in
te

gr
at

in
g 

m
ix

 u
se

.” 

~ 
V

is
io

ni
ng

 P
ub

lic
 P

re
fe

re
nc

e 
H

an
db

oo
 

In
 2

01
8,

 th
e 

Ja
ilh

ou
se

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 L
ad

ys
m

ith
 fo

r r
e-

zo
ni

ng
 th

e 
O

l’ 
R

C
M

P 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Si

te
 fr

om
 a

 th
re

e 
st

or
ey

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 to
 a

 fo
ur

 
st

or
ey

 m
ix

ed
-u

se
 b

ui
ld

in
g.

  

At
 th

at
 ti

m
e,

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

t t
w

o 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

fa
vo

re
d 

th
e 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 m

od
el

 w
ith

 o
ve

r 7
5 

at
te

nd
ee

s 
ex

pr
es

si
ng

 g
en

er
al

 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 fo
r f

ou
r s

to
re

ys
. 

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

so
m

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

  f
ro

m
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

an
d 

w
ith

 
m

uc
h 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n,
 th

e 
O

w
ne

r s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 m
et

 w
ith

 s
el

ec
te

d 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rs

 in
 

pe
rs

on
. 

Tw
o 

m
ai

n 
co

nc
er

ns
 w

er
e 

di
sc

us
se

d,
 

 
ad

eq
ua

te
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

lo
ng

 R
ig

by
 P

la
ce

; 
 

bu
ild

in
g 

he
ig

ht
 a

nd
 o

ve
rlo

ok
. 

 
At

 th
e 

tim
e,

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t d

id
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
th

e 
O

w
ne

r f
el

t 
th

at
 it

 w
as

 e
co

no
m

ic
al

ly
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 fo

rg
o 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 fl

oo
r. 

Th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 C
D

-6
 z

on
e 

lim
ite

d 
th

e 
Ja

ilh
ou

se
 P

ro
je

ct
 to

 th
re

e 
st

or
ey

s.
 

“L
ov

e 
th

e 
id

ea
 o

f b
rin

gi
ng

 li
fe

 b
ac

k 
in

to
 th

e 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
” 

~ 
P

IM
01

 S
ur

ve
y 

co
m

m
en

t 
 

W
ou

ld
 lo

ve
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

re
a 

ne
ar

 m
y 

ho
us

e 
(B

ay
vi

ew
 A

ve
) t

o 
so

ci
al

iz
e 

an
d 

en
jo

y.
 

~ 
P

IM
01

 S
ur

ve
y 

co
m

m
en

t 
 

“D
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
 a

re
a 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
to

 e
nj

oy
, a

cc
es

si
bl

e,
 a

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

.” 
~ 

La
dy

sm
ith

’s
 V

is
io

ni
ng

 P
ub

lic
 P

re
fe

re
nc

e 
H

an
db

oo
k 

“R
oa

ds
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
ne

tw
or

k.
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 

w
al

ka
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, v
eh

ic
le

s 
sh

ar
e 

th
e 

ro
ad

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, a

nd
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f a
 v

ib
ra

nt
 

co
m

m
un

ity
. S

tre
et

 c
al

m
in

g 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

xp
lo

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 tr

af
fic

 is
la

nd
s,

 
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 m
ed

ia
ns

, c
ur

b 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

, r
ai

se
d 

st
re

et
 s

ec
tio

ns
 

an
d 

te
xt

ur
ed

 p
av

em
en

t v
is

ua
l 

si
gn

al
s 

an
d 

m
es

sa
ge

s.
” 

~ 
La

dy
sm

ith
’s

 V
is

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 

P
re

fe
re

nc
e 

H
an

db
oo

k 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t p

ro
ce

ed
ed

 w
ith

 th
re

e 
st

or
ey

s 
an

d 
as

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d,
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
 w

as
 o

nc
e 

ag
ai

n 
on

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
To

w
n 

of
 L

ad
ys

m
ith

’s
 

re
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

fo
r a

cc
es

s 
of

f B
el

ai
re

 S
tre

et
, t

hi
s 

am
en

ity
 b

ec
am

e 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

R
es

id
en

tia
l p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

, 
on

-s
ite

 v
is

ito
r a

nd
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 s

ur
fa

ce
 p

ar
ki

ng
.  

St
re

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
n 

Be
la

ire
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

pa
rk

-s
id

e 
of

 R
ig

by
 P

la
ce

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
th

er
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

 in
st

al
le

d 
al

on
g 

R
ig

by
 P

la
ce

. 

An
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

s 
fo

r t
he

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
R

ig
by

 s
tre

et
 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 u
pg

ra
de

 m
ad

e 
it 

cl
ea

r t
ha

t a
 fo

ur
th

 fl
oo

r 
w

as
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pr
oj

ec
t v

ia
bi

lit
y.

 

H
en

ce
, t

hi
s 

re
zo

ni
ng

 p
ro

po
se

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

he
ig

ht
 fr

om
 th

re
e 

to
 fo

ur
 s

to
re

ys
.  

 
Th

is
 w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 

20
18

 a
nd

 fa
vo

ra
bl

y 
ac

ce
pt

ed
.  

 
Fo

ur
 s

to
re

ys
 is

 a
 “p

re
fe

rr
ed

 m
od

el
 w

he
n 

in
te

gr
at

in
g 

m
ix

 u
se

.” 

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



    

A
Y

P
Q

 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
E

w
w
w
.a
yp
qa
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e.
co
m

To
w

n 
Vi

si
on

 
Va

lu
e 

&
 T

he
m

es
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 tr

ai
ls

 –
 P

re
se

rv
in

g 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

pa
rk

s 
an

d 
tra

il 
sy

st
em

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

o 
ev

er
yo

ne
 li

ve
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 
sh

or
t d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 p
ar

k 
or

 g
re

en
w

ay
; 

 
 

“C
lu

st
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d:

 6
-8

 s
pa

ce
s 

w
ith

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
bu

ffe
rin

g.
 If

 m
or

e 
th

an
 

10
, p

ro
vi

de
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ba
ys

 fo
r d

iv
is

io
n.

  A
ut

o 
to

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 p

at
hs

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

tra
ns

iti
on

al
 e

le
m

en
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 p
la

nt
in

gs
, l

an
d 

fo
rm

s,
 s

cr
ee

ns
, a

nd
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

.“ 
~ 

La
dy

sm
ith

’s
 V

is
io

ni
ng

 P
ub

lic
 P

re
fe

re
nc

e 

R
Z.

20
20

: R
ig

by
 P

la
ce

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
R

ec
en

t d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 L
ad

ys
m

ith
 h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 a
 d

es
ig

n 
la

yo
ut

 s
ho

w
in

g 
R

ig
by

 P
la

ce
 w

ith
 

pa
rk

in
g 

on
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

Pa
rk

-s
id

e.
  I

t w
as

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

sa
fe

 c
on

fig
ur

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
m

en
ity

. 
 El

ev
en

 (1
) 9

0d
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
a 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 w

ill 
se

rv
ic

e 
bo

th
 p

ar
k 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 v
is

ito
rs

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ill 
be

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

ed
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
, l

ea
vi

ng
 

on
-s

ite
 p

ar
ki

ng
 fo

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
St

ra
te

gy
 #

2 
Lo

w
 Im

pa
ct

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

P
ur

si
ng

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
de

si
gn

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
ne

w
 s

tre
et

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 to

 m
ak

e 
st

re
et

s 
m

or
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 &

 s
oc

ia
lly

 m
or

e 
fri

en
dl

y.
 

W
ic

kh
am

 
Pa

rk
 

In
 2

01
8,

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 w
ith

 a
 

pa
rk

in
g 

la
yo

ut
 w

ith
 fi

ve
 (5

) p
ar

al
le

l p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s 

al
on

g 
R

ig
by

 P
la

ce
. 

Th
ey

 w
er

e 
as

ke
d 

if 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 p
ar

ki
ng

 w
as

 e
no

ug
h 

fo
r W

ic
kh

am
 P

ar
k.

 

Th
ei

r r
es

po
ns

e 
w

as
 m

ix
ed

 w
ith

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t l
ev

el
 o

f 
co

nc
er

n 
th

at
 p

ub
lic

 p
ar

ki
ng

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

. 

R
Z.

20
18

: R
ig

by
 P

la
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
Pu

bl
ic 

Pa
rk

in
g

En
ou

gh
 S

tr
ee

t P
ar

ki
ng

fo
r W

icc
am

 P
ar

k Ye
s

M
ay

be

no
co

m
m

en
t

PU
B

LI
C

 P
AR

K
IN

G
 

W
ic

kh
am

 
Pa

rk
 

So
m

ew
ha

t 
N

O
 

So
m

ew
ha

t 
YE

S 

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



    

A
Y

P
Q

 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
E

w
w
w
.a
yp
qa
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e.
co
m

012345

Average Rating
(1 = NOTAcheived,  5 = Achieved)

Su
rv

ey
 R

es
ul

ts
Re

sp
on

se
 fo

r e
ac

h 
to

pi
c

N
IM

 #
2 

Su
rv

ey
 T

op
ic

 : 
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N 

O
N

 S
IT

E 

 
 

O
ve

rlo
ok

 
 

C
on

ce
rn

s 
w

er
e 

pr
im

ar
ily

 ra
is

ed
 b

y 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
 in

 re
ga

rd
s 

to
 o

ve
rlo

ok
 o

f B
el

w
oo

d 
Vi

lla
ge

. 
W

ith
 a

 1
5f

t w
id

e 
se

tb
ac

k 
an

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 u

pp
er

 fl
oo

r s
et

ba
ck

, o
ve

rlo
ok

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

in
im

iz
ed

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 p
rim

ar
ily

 fr
on

t y
ar

ds
. 

Th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fe

lt 
th

at
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l d
es

ig
n 

do
es

 m
in

im
iz

e 
ov

er
lo

ok
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

ax
im

iz
e 

pr
iv

ac
y 

fo
r t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
’s

 o
nl

y 
tw

o 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s.

 

R
Z.

20
18

:  
Pr

iv
ac

y 
an

d 
ov

er
lo

ok
 c

om
m

en
ts

 

PR
IV

A
C

Y 
A

N
D 

O
VE

R
LO

O
K

 Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 fo
ur

th
 fl

oo
r w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
si

m
ila

r i
f n

ot
 le

ss
 o

ve
rlo

ok
 a

nd
 p

riv
ac

y 
co

nc
er

ns
. 

 
 

A 
w

id
e 

re
ar

 s
et

ba
ck

 e
ns

ur
es

 p
riv

ac
y 

an
d 

m
in

im
al

 o
ve

rlo
ok

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

no
rth

er
n 

ne
ig

hb
ou

r. 
 

 
La

rg
e 

ou
td

oo
r r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ec

ks
 w

ith
 h

or
iz

on
ta

l v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

oc
ea

n,
 b

uf
fe

rs
 o

ve
rlo

ok
 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
to

 B
el

w
oo

d 
Vi

llia
ge

. 

R
Z.

20
20

:  
Pr

iv
ac

y 
an

d 
ov

er
lo

ok
  

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



    

A
Y

P
Q

 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
E

w
w
w
.a
yp
qa
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e.
co
m

ZO
N

IN
G

 P
ro

po
se

d 
re

vi
si

on
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 a

dd
in

g 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 fl
oo

r 

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

 F
SR

 

Pr
op

os
ed

 m
ax

. 1
2 

un
its

 

Pr
op

os
ed

 H
ei

gh
t: 

 4
 S

to
re

ys
 

   

N
o 

Pr
es

en
t z

on
in

g 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 0
2,

 2
01

9 

Th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

id
en

tia
l f

ou
rth

 fl
oo

r p
ro

po
se

s 
to

 a
dd

 fo
ur

 u
ni

ts
 fo

r a
 to

ta
l o

f 1
2 

un
its

.  
O

th
er

 C
D

-6
 z

on
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 u

n-
re

la
te

d 
to

 d
en

si
ty

 re
m

ai
ns

 u
nc

ha
ng

ed
, s

uc
h 

as
 …

. 
 

Si
te

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 @

 4
0%

. 
 

Se
tb

ac
ks

 re
m

ai
n 

as
 is

, a
nd

 
 

Pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 s

pa
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
le

ve
l 

Th
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

le
ve

l r
em

ai
ns

 u
nc

ha
ng

ed
.  

Th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
ev

el
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

fo
r a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

ou
r r

es
id

en
tia

l u
ni

ts
 o

r a
 to

ta
l o

f 1
2 

un
its

. 

R
A

2



    

A
Y

P
Q

 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
U
R
E

w
w
w
.a
yp
qa
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e.
co
m

SC
H

EM
A

TI
C

 D
ES

IG
N

  
Fo

ur
 S

to
re

y 
M

ix
ed

-u
se

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 d

ra
w

in
gs

 

 

20
20

.1
1.

12



R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

R
D

3

A
C

C
L2

1

X

2255520082

Rear Setback

17000 3082 11278 11278 1098

Front Setback

2000

Pa
tio

Property Line

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e

26
97

4

Su
rf

ac
e 

Pa
rk

in
g

Property Line

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

14
H

C
15

H
C

16
17

18

Walkway (Pavers)

W
al

kw
ay

  (
C

on
c.

 o
r P

av
er

s)

do
tte

d 
lin

e 
of

U
/G

 P
kg

 b
el

ow

da
sh

-d
ot

 li
ne

 o
f

Fr
on

ty
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k

G
re

en
 R

oo
f

L3
 D

ec
k

be
lo

w
 

L3
 D

ec
k

be
lo

w

L3 Planter

L3 Planter L3 Planter

L3 Planter

L3
 D

ec
k

be
lo

w

L3
 D

ec
k

be
lo

w

BE
LA

IR
E 

ST
R

EE
T

RIGBY PLACE

R
ef

us
e 

Fe
nc

ed
 A

re
a

Lo
ad

in
g 

Zo
ne

Dotted line of existing curb and gutter

do
tte

d 
lin

es
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
ed

ge
 o

f p
av

em
en

t

Si
de

ya
rd

 s
et

ba
ck

45
00

 in
te

rio
r

D
ot

te
d 

lin
e 

of
ex

is
t'g

 c
on

cr
et

e 
cu

rb

do
tte

d 
lin

e 
of

 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

pa
rk

in
g 

st
al

ls

L2
 D

ec
k 

be
lo

w

L2
 D

ec
k 

be
lo

w
L2

 D
ec

k 
be

lo
w

da
sh

-d
ot

 li
ne

 o
f

R
ea

ry
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k

Si
de

ya
rd

 s
et

ba
ck

20
00

 e
xt

er
io

r

W
al

kw
ay

(C
on

c.
)

Si
de

w
al

k 
ac

ce
ss

Lo
ad

in
g 

Zo
ne

Grass/Landscaping

Si
de

w
al

k

1500 C
ur

b

24
49

Grass/Landscaping

Grass/Landscaping

L2
 D

ec
k 

be
lo

w

Pa
tio

R
am

p 
D

N
 

(to
 U

/G
)

13
19

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12
1320

Sc
al

e:
20

20
-1

1-
12

 2
:5

5:
27

 P
M

1"
 =

 1
0'

-0
"

Si
te

Th
e 

Ja
ilh

ou
se

 M
ix

ed
-u

se
33

6 
Be

la
ire

 S
tre

et
,

La
dy

sm
ith

 B
C

R
Z.

20
11

06
 (1

)
AQ

20
11

20
20

.1
1.

12



3

A
C

1

X

1s2345678910
s

11
s

12
s

13
s

17 18 19 20 21

14
s

15
s

16
s

E
le

va
to

r

Lo
ck

er
St

or
ag

e

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l

El
ec

tr
ic

al
St

or
ag

e
G

ar
ba

ge
/R

ec
yc

lin
g

Lo
ck

er
St

or
ag

e En
tr

y

Sc
al

e:
20

20
-1

1-
12

 1
:1

2:
19

 P
M

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

Fl
oo

r P
la

n 
-U

G
 P

ar
ki

ng
Th

e 
Ja

ilh
ou

se
 M

ix
ed

-u
se

33
6 

Be
la

ire
 S

tre
et

,
La

dy
sm

ith
 B

C

R
Z.

20
11

06
 (2

)
AQ

20
11

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



D
N

3

A
C

1

X

C
om

m
er

ci
al

Si
de

w
al

k

Greenspace
see landscape plan for detailed planting layout P

ro
pe

rty
 L

in
e

W
al

kw
ay

 (C
on

c.
 o

r P
av

er
s)

Lo
bb

y

St
ai

r A

St
ai

r B

P
la

nt
er

P
la

nt
er

BE
LA

IR
E 

ST
R

EE
T

RIGBY PLACE 

W
al

kw
ay

(P
av

er
s)

Greenspace
see landscape plan for detailed planting layout

St
ai

r C

St
ai

r D

St
ai

r F

St
ai

r G

E
le

va
to

r

Greenspace
see landscape plan for detailed planting layout

Lo
ad

in
g 

Zo
ne

St
ai

r H

Sc
al

e:
20

20
-1

1-
12

 1
:1

2:
20

 P
M

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

Fl
oo

r P
la

n 
-C

om
m

er
ci

al
Th

e 
Ja

ilh
ou

se
 M

ix
ed

-u
se

33
6 

Be
la

ire
 S

tre
et

,
La

dy
sm

ith
 B

C

R
Z.

20
11

06
 (3

)
AQ

20
11

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



W
/D

FD

FD FD
FD

W
/D

W
/D

W
/D

3

A
C

C
L2

1

C
L.

1

2A 2B

D
ec

k
D

ec
k

D
ec

k
D

ec
k

overall building

74' - 0"  (22.56 m)

ov
er

al
l b

ui
ld

in
g

88
' -

 6
"  

(2
6.

97
 m

)

St
ai

r A

C
or

r
St

ai
r B

*

Li
vi

ng

K
itc

he
n

B
ed

ro
om

W
IC

En
su

ite

B
at

hr
oo

m

B
ed

ro
om

En
tr

y

G
ra

ve
l

Su
ite

 2
A

Su
ite

 2
B

Su
ite

 2
C

Su
ite

 2
D

E
le

va
to

r

G
ra

ve
l

G
ra

ve
l

G
ra

ve
l

B
ed

ro
om

Li
vi

ng
B

ed
ro

om

W
IC

K
itc

he
n

En
su

ite

B
at

hr
oo

m

W
IC

En
su

ite

B
at

hr
oo

m

B
ed

ro
om

K
itc

he
n

B
ed

ro
om

Li
vi

ng

W
IC

En
su

ite

B
at

hr
oo

m

K
itc

he
n

Li
vi

ng

B
ed

ro
om

En
tr

y

En
tr

y

Sc
al

e:
20

20
-1

1-
12

 1
:1

2:
24

 P
M

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

Fl
oo

r P
la

n 
-R

es
id

en
tia

l
Th

e 
Ja

ilh
ou

se
 M

ix
ed

-u
se

33
6 

Be
la

ire
 S

tre
et

,
La

dy
sm

ith
 B

C

R
Z.

20
11

06
 (4

)
AQ

20
11

D
R

AF
T 

20
20

.1
1.

12



Le
ve

l O
ne

0'
 -

0"

Le
ve

l T
w

o
12

' -
0"

Le
ve

l T
hr

ee
22

' -
2 

3/
4"

3
C

L2
1

P
ar

ap
et

46
' -

2 
3/

4"

Le
ve

l 4
32

' -
5 

1/
2"

37
' -

 0
"  

(1
1.

28
 m

)
37

' -
 0

"  
(1

1.
28

 m
)

Le
ve

l O
ne

0'
 -

0"

Le
ve

l T
w

o
12

' -
0"

Le
ve

l T
hr

ee
22

' -
2 

3/
4"

A
C

C
L.

1

P
ar

ap
et

46
' -

2 
3/

4"

Le
ve

l 4
32

' -
5 

1/
2"

6' - 3 1/4"  (1.91 m)

44
' -

 3
"  

(1
3.

49
 m

)
44

' -
 3

"  
(1

3.
49

 m
)

Le
ve

l O
ne

0'
 -

0"

Le
ve

l T
w

o
12

' -
0"

Le
ve

l T
hr

ee
22

' -
2 

3/
4"

3
C

L2
1

P
ar

ap
et

46
' -

2 
3/

4"

Le
ve

l 4
32

' -
5 

1/
2"

Le
ve

l O
ne

0'
 -

0"

Le
ve

l T
w

o
12

' -
0"

Le
ve

l T
hr

ee
22

' -
2 

3/
4"

A
C

C
L.

1

P
ar

ap
et

46
' -

2 
3/

4"

Le
ve

l 4
32

' -
5 

1/
2"

Sc
al

e:
20

20
-1

1-
12

 1
:1

2:
47

 P
M

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

El
ev

at
io

ns
Th

e 
Ja

ilh
ou

se
 M

ix
ed

-u
se

33
6 

Be
la

ire
 S

tre
et

,
La

dy
sm

ith
 B

C

R
Z.

20
11

06
 (5

)
AQ

20
11

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

1
W

es
t (

R
ig

by
) -

R
Z

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

2
So

ut
h 

(B
el

ai
re

) -
R

Z

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

3
Ea

st
 (B

el
w

oo
d)

 -
R

Z

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

4
N

or
th

 (R
ea

r) 
-R

Z



Sc
al

e:
20

20
-1

1-
12

 1
:1

2:
51

 P
M

3D
 M

od
el

Th
e 

Ja
ilh

ou
se

 M
ix

ed
-u

se
33

6 
Be

la
ire

 S
tre

et
,

La
dy

sm
ith

 B
C

R
Z.

20
11

06
 (6

)
AQ

20
11

1
3D

 R
ig

by
-B

el
ai

re
 C

or
ne

r





Methune View





Dogwood C View

4th Extension


	c. 2021.03.03 CPAC Agenda Package
	c. 2021.03.03 CPAC Agenda
	b. 2021.02.03 Draft CPAC Minutes
	2021.03.03 CPAC Package ZBL 20-08
	2021.03.03 CPAC report ZBL 20-08
	2021.02.09 EIA Riparian Report 10864 Westdowne
	Fig 1.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Appendix A.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5



	2021.02.23 CPAC Referral Report RZ20-09 336 Belaire +Att
	Blank Page

	AQ2011-5.1_210225 ToL Viewshed Views.jpg



